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FOREWARD

One dey while browsing in a library among the 020's I found a BOOK
OF CAULRIGIE LIBRARLYNS by T. We Koch. Now it was with eagerness, I can assure
vou, that 1 scanned the pasges.

To those of you who have read the book you may recall a chapter
'Towa —- and the? ither West:'! In that chapter mention is made of the Public
Library at Lincoln. Now, knowing that there are today in sixty-eight Nebrask
tovms Carnegie buildings, and realizing that in each community the library is
Just as important =s the one in Lincoln I was persuaded to continue the story
as far as Nebraska ig concerncd. In esach town in which one of these buildings
stands, a permenent memorial to the benefactor, that building is an outstand-
ing bit of good architecture, a coenter of civic pride and a real community
asset, Turther it will be found that the smaller the community the more
valuable is the gift.

When one beging to write on any subject, that subject becomes like a
hithway with side-roads appearing at intervals. This subject of Carnegic
Libreries in Nebraska is no exception when it comes to correlating subjects.

It scemed that a sketch of early Nebraska and of her -growing in-
dustries and her vast resources should be congsidered. This is the background
on which the whole cultural and educational c¢lements are grounded.

Only mere mention can be ziven to some of the libraries which have
bocn the warp and woof in the library activity; the State Library, the
Universit, Library, the Public Librory Commission, the State Historical
Socicty and the Legislative Reference Burcau. Then there are the several
school and collegs librarics. Fech of thesc should have a place in a complate
discourss on Nebraska Librari:ss.

No paper on Cernegle Librariss would be complete without a story of
Ur. Androw Carmegic himsclf, and his blg, generous idea.

Becausce of the place the many tax-supportad librariss, not Carnegie
Zifts, heve in individusl locolities, I wish to mention them in this foreword.
Zach of them is worthy of its place in the community and worthy of the name
Public Library.
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NEBRASKA AND CARMEGIE LIBRARIGS

In the very center of the United States lies the state of
Nebreska.

"Hebrathka" was th= Otos Indian name for the Platte or "Flat
Water." Ag this wmsual river calied by Irving "the most ma_nificent anc
the most useless of rivers" flows across the stete it was a very gisnifi-
cant name to ¢ive the tervitory.

History bezins with the first inhebitants found hers by the
white men. HNebraska was a gzreat Indian center. Her wide open gnaces pro-
vided oxcellent hunting grounds and an abundant food supoly. Vhen the
vhite men came they found the Indians sroused in seven tribes, the Dalkotas
or Sioux, the Poncas, the Omahas, the Otoss, the Missouris, the Pawnseg,
the Arapahoes and the Cheyennas.

In 1541 Francis Vascuez Coronado and his party pushed as fer
north as this rcgion. These wore the first white men rocorded by history
ag visiting this part of America. From e diary kept by Captain Juan
Jaramillo, one of the party, interestlng facts are zleaned. "This country
presents a very fine appcaronce, than which I have not setn a better in all
our Spain nor Italy nor a oart of France, nor, indeed, in the other countriazs
in which I have travelled, in his Majesty's scrvice, for it is not a very
rouzh country, but it is made up of hillocks and >lains, and very fine ap-
nearing rivers and streams, which certainly satisfied me and made me surc that
it will be very fruitful in all sorts of »roducts. Inde'd, there is a
profit in the cattle ready to the hand, from the cuantity of thom, which is
as great as one could imagzine. We found a varicty of Casgtilian pruneg which
are not all red, but some of them black =nd zrecn; the trce and fruit is
certainly lilc that of Castile, with a very excellent flavor. Amon: the
cows we found flax, which springs up from theo zarth in clumos apart from ecach
othor, which are noticeable, as the cattle do not eat it; their tops end
blue flowers, are very porfoct althouzh small, rescabling that of our ovn
Spain, (or sumach like ours in Spein.) Here are zrapcs slong somc stroems, of
a £ir flavor, not to be improved upon—-——-"
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The zreat herds of puffalocs found by this party in Quivirza woras
o mervelous sizht. The Spaninrds had been guidec hor: by an Indisn, a memoer
of the tribe living here. Theyr thoerefore found the Indians were very hos-
pitable. It was probobly August when they visited here and they went back
south for the winter determiued to return the following spring.

We learn that French traders and explorers traveled up the
ifliggouri early in 1700.

The whole repion became a much digputed territory in time. It
has boen neld by three countrics; Spain, Fronce, and Sngluné and hns there-
fore been under three flosg., 1In 1803 it wag a vort of the grzat Louisiacna

o

torritory sold by Franee to United States.




As the grand pageant of the years passes in review explorers,

missionariss, traders and home seskerp appoor. The last were pushing
westwrurd ever westword.

Nebraska was so located that mony peonle passed through. Between
the y=2ars 1836 and 1868 the government recorded at its forts that more than
two and a half million veople crossed Nebraska in covesred wagons.

Paseing on through the years we arrive at the Kansas- Nebraska
days. Stephen A. Douglas introduced a bill in Congress in 1844 to organize
hie Nebraska territory. It foiled. Likewise a second and a third bill
failed. Finally in 1854 a fourth known as the "Kangas-Nebraska'" bill was
passed after a long hard struggle, ond was signed by President Franklin Pierce,

1 territory was very extensive. It streched from the

The original
igh America and from the Missouri River to the Rocky

Kansas border to Brit
Mountaing,

The fight was won in 1867 for statchood and Nebraska became a
state Morch lst of that ysar. Omaha, beautifully located on the bluffs of
tihe Missouri River was at the very gute to the west. Omrha wae the capital
of the territory but Lincoln was finally chosen oe the capital for the state.

The yeers following were never to bhe forgotten. Hard times,
drouth and gragshoppers followad close upon each other, It was not long until
the mosgt desirable land in the castern part of the state was all homestoadcd
and then the more adventurous home seekers pressed farther west. Those sarly
days strongthened the fibre of the citizens ond while some became discouraged
and turned back many more stayed. To those who stayed we pay homage. It is
to such as stayed that Homlin Gorland and Wille Cather, Bess Strezter Aldrich
and others have paid tribute in story. It i1s to those who pressed on and
succeaded that fitting monuments 2nd memorinls are erected, to keep alive the
yvesterycars for the people of tocey.

Jugt now one of the wost interesting of commeration nrojects in
this state is that to meke the location of the last great historical hattle
between the Sioux and the Pawnces. Thils battle was in 1875 near Trenton and
in thoe southwest part of the state. In 1928 through intercst arouscd by
Cengressncn Shallenberger, o foderel appropriation of $7500 was made. This
is 2 real Indinn story of historical si¢nificence. Perhaps the interest of
a former Nebreskaon, Gutzon Borglum will cngage him in the creation of a
suitable memoricl to be placed on that last Indian battle-ficld.

Passing across the state from cast to wost or from south to nerth
oric finds mony small tovms fur Nebraska is made up of smell ltowns. The
porulation in the majority of the communitics is five thousand cr lésg.
(Mostly less.) In thcsc torms and in the country surrounding, live the
bulrarl: of the state.

Native Amcricans, for the most part, or peoples from the
agricultwral sections of Northern Europe inhabit the communities. These
lather ncople brought with them a true love for the soil ~nd intense ambition
alceng with a love for American liberty. All these make them the most de-
sirable of citizens.
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As one approaches the nverage Nebraska town the urunl skyline
of 2 stend-pipe, two or three grain elevators and several church spires
appear. Then upon entering ths limita of the village there is the unfolding
of the usual pznorama: school house, railraod station with the stock yards
near by, two or three filling stotions and several gorozes, of which the
Ford is no doubt the best equipved, a possible creamery, ond numerous stores.
Then one finds o Tourist park, often with a populer svimming nool. The strestls
are wide and the Lomes look comfortable. Sometimes there is a librory.

Driving on over the w2ll developed highway system throuzh the
corn shaded avenues, one is impressed by the fertility of the goil. Great
fields of grain and alfalfa stretch out to the right end left. Farther west,
fields of supar bests and potatoes prove that products of tne soil are
abundent. In these western scctions the agriculture is carriec on by means
of irrigation, the lack of water having bzen o serious drawback in carlier
yenrs. In 1854 Ldward Everett ilole said of the arza, "It is wholly uscless,
for agricultural purposes and mugt remain go forever,"

The great arcas where grazing predominates and the vast sections
wherc wild hay flourishes, add much to the stotc's financial returns. It is
very cvident on every side that Nebraslka ig an sgricultural state and o ranking
state in this very important industry.

One is attracted by the smell groves of trees gracing the land-
scanc. Bxeept for trecs along rivers and streams each clump of trues means
0 homs. Thers was a time when it was thought impossible to grow treos in this
state —- but that wag years ago. Now, thanks to our noble citizen, J.
Sterling Morton, Nebraske is known as the Tree Plenterts State. Towering
above the grove is another common sight —- thnt of the whirling wind-mill --
the never onding water supply for man ond beast.

5o

coutiful when it Loy 2s o praircie country. Boyard Taylor wrots, "The country
s one of the most peautiful I aver looked upon. Woture has given A

sacothnoses and finish which olsewherc come from long cultivation."

t is a boaubiful strte now but there wore those who thousht it
©
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One might dwrcll at length upon the growing industrics, many of whic
e cannot oven mention here. Bub this must be noted: there is that ever
orasent teindoncy of Westward Always Wegtuard, in cll tho development and
growth that his taken place within the ativhe .

The educational system deszrvis more thon a passing romerk.  Ax-
cellent opportunities are offered. It is a £net of which the state cuan boe
justly prend that practically everyone within the boundarioss can road and
ritc. The illiteracy is low -- one 2nd four-tenths per-unt -- places
Wabroske sccond among the stotes. Iowa, our ned’hbor 1o the sust, 1s first.

Another commendable thing in any state and notlceable hers, is
e lack of real poverty. Over holf of the families own their homss and more
thon Fifty oer cent of the farm londs are operoted by ommers.




Out, Zrom this state has gone = groun of dictinguished reon]
th hun tinpion, o well-known sscogroniier, has sold that Fehrasgke
Lo New Inoi-nd in the nnﬂcﬁnt'»n of her naople vho have

Into the Mebrosia territdyy durins the latter half of the lost
centvry cnme hundreds of fmilice ambiticus ond eo o1 for new houes,
Hchools snd churchss ers soor estublished, «nd in mouny instences librarie
gare sterted,

3ince tho Kong s-Kebroeska Act of May 20, 18564, there has heun 2
stote library. The office of state libmricn was ercotod in 1867, wnd the
Soercbary of Stote wog deglmanted cxoffTicio rg State Libraricn. In 1871
tro divisions wors modce of the stote librory. The miscellancous materianl
to e in chorze of thoe Seerctary of State nd the law seetion undor the carc
of the Clori of the Suprome Court. Jonuery 1, 1921, by amondment to the
Constituticon the Clork of thoe Suprums Court was alse made State Librarion.
Thig librory is < croditable ssset of cur state, snd is loecatzd in its
gpaclous ~nd hooubiful quorters in tho now Capitol Building,

The 1ibrory of the Undiversity of Nobr-ske, cstoablished in 1871,
hop o library dsserving specicl mention. Tho universgity library is the
Iar-ast in the stato. Dup rtmontal librarics ars locatad to Do 2§ accegsible
ne pospible te studente wnd faculty. The contral buildipg is far from
asdoquate te afford sufficient rcoms A now day for the libroary of thoe Und-
vorsity of Nobraghe g hopod fer. A new building vhich will be the ecnter of
all university activity is the crylng nceed for the campug,

The Public Library Commission, wstoblished in 1901, has os its
nembers the State Librarian, the State Superintend.nt of Public Instruction,
the Chanecleor z2nd the Librorian of the University and o fifty member
appcintoﬂ by the Governor. Th. actual work of the Commission is administercd
by thoe Scerotory snd her staff.

The Commissdon hoe o threoe fold placce in the librory activitics
cf the stzte. First: The Gumnission 1s roguired "to cancourage the cstob-
lighmnoent of librarice where none oxisgt and the improvemont of thesc al-
ready eastablished " Secend:  the loaning of bocks. Thipd: supervision of

nstitutional librariss.

The Stote Hilgterieal Scelcety (1878) ond the Leglslative
Refurenes Burcou must be montioned for the spocicl work cach carries on.

The librarics of the four State Taachers Colleges and the

govoernl denominationsl cclleges in the stete are with the university
deing o cemmendable vork.

As for the libraries in the slomentory and High Schools they are
gtill in the cmbryrnlc staze. Onc High School library should be montioned
for the place it has taken a8 2 wodel library. The library of the Tech-
nical High Schocl in Omaha is the hoort and center of the school. As the
viieel is built orcund the hub, so the school is about this library.




Public libraries have been possgible in Nebraska since the
law of 1877 olthouch sn net applicable to the %eity of Brownville® had been
passed in 1875. The bill wrs unchangzed until 1901 when the word "frec!
was inscrted in one place, and the levy wos increased from one to two mills.
In 1911 the lew provided for the cstablishment of township and county
librories ond the levy was aguin raised to three mills. Another levy for
public libraries was placed »t five mills, and at the same time the number
of library trustces was roducad to five.

As the desire for public libraries became more immihent there
was provided for the emergency o men, Andrew Carnezic, whbse chicf joy was
in satisfying that desire and making public library buildings possible.

To Andrew Carne:iz, a true son of Scotland, the United States,
his adopted country, owes a zroat ond lasting debt. In his autobiogrophy
is reveelod the man we would like to have knovm.

Andrew Carnegic wns born in Dunfermline, Scotland, November
25, 1835, His parents wore poor and honost, so he could rightfully say —--
"of wood kith 2nd kin."

The father, William Carnsgie, was o domask weaver. His groand-
father for whom he must have been named, was Andraw Carncgle. Woe arce in-
formed that the grandson was very like the grandfather Androw, in all his
mannorisms. Both could laush trouble avay and "make all ducks swons." Hie
motto was taken from hig beloved poet, Burns, "Thine ovm roproach alone do
foar,m

Andrew Carnevie looked 1like his other grendfather; Thomas
Morrigon, the publishor of the first radical paper in Scotland. Thore must
have been a great likeness betircen the two for upon the visit of an uncle,
ailie Morrison, 25 yoars lator, he vas so impressed with the resemblance
that hig cyes filled with tears and he rushed from the room. There was the
same gesture —- he eould not tell want it wes —- Androw's mother had often
thouzht the same thing -- but neither could ghs desceribe it. How subtlc is
the law which transmits gzesturs!

Very 1ittle is scid of the mothor vho meant so much to him. Hor
memory was too sacred for worcds. She 1s knovm to have inherlted the dignity
anc¢ refinement of a lady. .

Onc of the great but silent influcnces in the 1ifec of +this Scotch
lac was the Abbey. The ever piresent Abbey was throwing its influcnce over
the poople of the little vill.ge, just 2s the groot costle in Edinburgh

3T
ves casting its lasting influcnce therc. Evorysherce romance and history.

His fatheor nresuared in his trade ond all went well uutil the
graat industrial chaonge was ushered in. Then hend posicr cave way to steam
notrer and the hand loom hocame the steam loom.




The family was interested in studying the map of America
and the regiong around Lake Erie and Pittsburgh became more interesting
after one, Uncle William, hatl suiled for those parts.

The Carnepies became actlve in the "down with aristocracy
movement." Privilege was denounced in all form: . America was
prais=d at this time. Andrew Carnegzie states that he would have
slain a kinz, duke, or a lord, so bitter w as his faecling at one time.

OSchool days and here days followed alon:. Wallace, Bruce,
and Burns were the boys' idols. 1t really zave Andrew Carnegie a
panz to think that Anmzrica had herces. lHe really did rot feel at
home here {or years aiter the family moved. Hc had the same feeling
as that of a Canadioa who said of America - "very well for a visit
but 1 could never live so far away from the romains of Bruce and Wallace.!

Thers seems to have been a relizious disturbance within the
family. The shorter catechism was nevsr learned as the rest of his
friends were learniny it. His father once said, "Theologiss were many

but thers wag one religion.”

The Carnegie home was ploasant. The children enjoyed their
home. Thers were pets and many childhood friends. The younyg Andrew
once brined some of his many fricnds by naming their rabbits for them

if they would carry his fodder.

The time came when the family dsecided to try life in
Lmarica. The father often sang:

"To the Vast, to the iest, to the land of the free,
Whore the wmishty Missourd rolls cown to the s2a.
hore a mah is 2 man even though he must toil

And the poorsst may gather the fraits of the soil."

It was 2 sad leave taking asg v left from the Firth of
Forth. There were friends made amons the sailors and the passenzers, and
the passagze proved very intsrasting so that How York came at last. 1t
wag on to Pittsburgh by way of the Eric Canal, Buffale, Lake Erie. 1t
took thre: weeks to make the trip that new requires ten hours by rail
(and no time by air). There wore old frisnds to welcome them in Pitts-
burgt.

The new home was estabpliched in Allegheny City whersz the father
besan to weave and the mother aided in binding shoes. Andrsw was soon
busy ot odd jobg and then becamn: d MESSENZar LOY.

Atout thig time a great bleseing opened up to the boys of
Alleshony City and for Andrew in purticulac. Colonel Jamzs Anderson an-
nounced that he would open his library on Saturday afternoons for working
boys. Aucre Carnegie suw this notice in the papsr. And in the next issue
of tha Digpatch he put 2 guesticn to Colencl Anderson, asking if the boys
who did not us:2 their hands were to bz excluced. The answer Colonel
Anderscn zave was, "A working boy should have a trace." The rojoinder of
indrow Carnegie's was el moa, "A working boy without a trade.” A cary or
two later an itom on the oditorial pare of the Dispatch road, "Will a




Workinzy Boy without a trade pluase call at the office.”

To this man and to this library which was the haven for working
boys 4bdrew Carnegie felt himself deeply indebied. 1t was the beginning
of his library expeiicnce. Of Colonel Andoerson, he said, "To him I owe a
taste for literature which 1 would not exchianze for all the millions that
vere ever amnassed by man."

Later a monument wag crected by Mr. Carncgic to the memory
of the man who had mzant so mupch to him. This statue was placed in front
of the library in Allegheny City. It stands there, a silent tribute to
Colonel Andersen.

The success of Andrew Carnegie was most unusual. There came
a time when Mr. Carnegie felt that he should practice what he had earlier
written in "The Gospel of Wealth." The time had come to cease struggling
for more wsalth and the task for him was the distribution of what he had
acquired. Said he: "This, then, is held to be the duty of the man of
wealths To set an example of modest, wnostenlatious living, shunning dis-
play or extravagance; to provide moderately for the legitimate wants of
those dependent upon him; and after deing so, to consider all surplus
revenues which come to him gimply as trust funds, which he is called upon
to administer, and strictly bound as a matter of duty to administer in the
manner which, in bis judgment, is best calculated to produce the most
beneficial results for the community -~ "he man of wealth thus becoming the
mere trustes ana agent for his poorar brethren, bringing to thair service
his superior wigdom, experisnce, and ability to administer, doing for them
better than they would or conld do for themszlves.M

His first distribution was known as the "Andrew Carnsgie
Relief Fund" and was for *the men in the millg. 1t was degigned to relieve
those who might suffer from accidents and to provide small p.unglons
for those who might neced aid in their old age.

This Relief Fund was but the boerinning of the several Funds
established. But the first ;ift of Androw Carnegie was a public library

for his native town of Dunfecrmline.

Thers followed the libracies in Allegheny City, their first
Auwerican home, and in Pilttsourgh, the city in which be made his fortune.
The Carneszie Institute in Pittsburgh is made up of a library, a muscunm,
a picture gallery, o technical school and a school for jyounz women. Re-
guest after rsquest came to the great giver and city after city was irade the
recipient of a zift.

Mr. Carnegie's intersst became universal. His gifts will
reach on and on throughout the years. But the ziving that was nsarest
and dearsst to him was the establishment of libraries. 1t is not our pur-
pose to estimate in fizures the amounts ziven nor the number of persons
daily enjoyinz the libraries. It is enough to know that there never has
been another like the Andrewv Carnegie who lLiag made librariss possible. He
once said that if ever wealth came to him it should be used to establish
free libraries, that other poor boys mizhit receive opportunitics similar
to those for which he was indebted to thut noble man, Colonel Ancer:zon.
At snother time he said if but ons boy in each library was half as benesfited
ag ha had besn he would e spatisfied and that that library would not have
been sgtablished in vsoin.
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Along in th=z yaars when Andrew Carnezie was stretching out in
industrial activities thers was out in the wvery heart of this country a
n3w and growing state which was pushing and stretching out for ite very
existence. By the time Mr. Carnegie had decided to distribute the vast
fortune he had acquired there ware saveral Ncbraska towns ready to recelve
a portion.

A zreat number of localities aided by #r. Carnegie were in
the sparsely settled and new gections of the United States. When the
Carnegie plan of a library building was prossnted it proved a great ad-
vantage to theose communities. The plan was always a self-supporting,
as each locality was asked to have an annual maintenauce equal to at
least ten par cent of the grant made for the buildinz. Hr. Carnegiec never
gave until the library could be maintained s a public institution, asg much
as a part of city property as the public schools.

Mr. Carnegie considered a library the best zift that could bhe
given a town. Said he: "Because it helps only those that help themselves,
because it dozs not sap the foundation of manly indepondence, because it
doeg not pauperize, because it stretches a hand to the aspiring and places
a ladder upon which they can only ascend by doing the climbping."

The very first libraries organized in Nebragka should have
honorabile mention. There were various roasonsg for the cestablishment
of ths several libraries or reading rooms. There was that ursent need for
books in tlie first place. One of the interestinz facts related regarding
the nead for such a place wag that it would be a counter attraction for the
gsaloong. And of the saloons, thare were assorted varieties in those aays.

The oldest library established was that in Omaha, in 1871
and known as thz Omaha Library Association. By 1872 throuzh a generous
gift of one thousand volumes and the purchuse of eight hundred more, the
library nad a very gcood pezinning. For this Association a three dollar
membarship fee was charzed which membership =lso entitled the holder of
the ticket to attend the winter lecture coursz. In 1877 when the law
permitting the establishmznt of municipal librories was passed, Omaha was
willing and ready to szccept the ingtitutiou. Thare was 2 big day for Omaha
in February 1873, whaen a large rzacing room was openad to the public for
the first tine.

The present site was the bequest of Mr. 3ryon Reed ana was
made possible when the city would crect a buildinz. #r. Reed was a donor
who balieved according to the Carnegie plan of ziving and that was that in
bestowling charity Uthe main considsration ghould be to halp those who would
h=lp thenselves. Omana voted the bonde and tha building was completed
in 1898. There ig one Carneyie buildinz in Omaha on the South side.

This became a part of the Omaha system when South Omaha was annexed in
195,

In Drisr, this is the lilstory of the oldest public library
in Nebraska. The zrowth of Omaha has been safz and sure. The librapy
just now fasle the drastic need for more room and we regret that at the
rueout city election, (May 1930) bonds failad to carry.

3 R
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Lincoln, th: second library, was organized in 1875. There has
boan digpute over the rigsht to be "first" Litween Omaha and Lincoln but
the Omaha's have ibt. Dowevor, Lincolm can proudly boast of haviny the first
Carnzygie library building in the state.

The story of the city of Lincoln has many ups and dovms. Thaie
was a struz:le [or its very sxistence; then tac fisht over the locatlon of
tha capital, which until 1875 woes o heated sjuestion; the eftect of the dry
years, of 1373-1874 and the :raschopner years which followed were never
to be forgotten times in ths entiroe sbates then the terrible winters; these
wvere incidents of those early yeuarst In spite of all these sceming calami-
tize therc wera progressive citizens who would not be digcouraged by the
hoppers and the w2ather.

The Lincoln Library had its bezinning back in the days of 187H.
A subscription library and reading room was founded, becoming the Lincoln
Public Library in 1877. This uas after the act of Legislature made it
possible for o Jlibrary to be supported arnd mointained by a nunicipality.
Barly in the year an appropiration had beesn requested from the council.
The council passed the measure but it was vetoed by the mayor because:
First, it would lead to other fooligh appropriations and tend to ex-
travazence; second, because of its unconstitutionality, there beiiz no
provision in the city chartir for such sction; lastly, because he "did not
think the citizens cared to he taxed to furnish a resort for boys and young
mzn inclined to be wilc."

-

The library of Liuceln grow alony with the expanding city. Gain
after rain was noted and in 1001 the Carnezie building was crected. Later
a branch library was needed aud the Cariwcgile Corporation gave to Lincoln
fer the second time.

But therc is a recont chapter to this Lincoln story. Within two
years throe outlying corporationy Collzze View, Univarsity Place end iave-
lock, have baen annexed and three more libraries, all Carncsis buildings,
have been added to the system. This makes five buildinzs in all. The
Library Board is greatly handicapped Ly a lack of funds. Sufficient income
wag not received before the addition of the three new buildings —- and the
city is taxed to ths limit. 1t would seem that the only way out is for a
new law which will enallc the city to increase the tax rcceipts. The
Library Soard hag gone in for & hard bit of publicity and a real statement
of facts and the people will at least be iuformed of the sarious situation
facing their publie library. An immediate remedy is essential.

The third oldest library orzaunization is that at Crete. This
association was established in 1878 and it strug:led slong until a Carnegie
building was made possible in 1915. The site was donated by a fellow
tovmsian, Mr. T. . Miller. Crote is a beautiful college town about

twenty miles from Lincolu. In addition to the public library in the town
there is tle Loane Colleze libracy which odds a great deal to the library
facilities. (The colless was organized in 1872, making the college library
older than the public library.)

But there were other towns whose orgzouisations were made before
1900. Alony through those hard ysars any movement of civic interszst de-
serves hith praise. Patient, long saffering and loyal people worked hard
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to accomplish results ajainst most sevsre odds. The list of libraries and
the date of the organization follows: 8lready mentioned:- *Omaha 1871;
Lincoln 1875; *Crete 1878.

*Columbus 1878
#Qrand lsland 1884
*Superior 1884
#Plattsmouth 1886
#Tecumseh 1887
*Chadron 1889
Humboldt 1830
*Kearney 1890
*Seward ' 1890
#David City 1891
#*Beatrice 1893
York 1894
#*Holdrage 1895
Nebraska City 1896
Nelson 1896
*Wymore 1899
Central City 1899

Of this group of carly organizations all but two, Humboldt and
Nelson, now have buildings, andé fifteen of the number are Carnezie buildings.

While the first Carnegie building was in Lincoln in 1901 the
gecond library was the one in Fremont in 1903. Then the next year, 1904,
three more were dropped down into good Nebraska communities.

At Beatrice the public library is the outgrowth of two distinct
groups, "The Beatrice Literary Club" and the W.C.T.U. When in 1893 the
Literary Club found itself in possegsion of a sum of money as well as the
original library of the W.C.T.U. the council was again approached regarding
assistance in the maintenance of a public library for public needs. They
acted favorably upon the suggestion and the Beatrice Free Public Library
was formally opened on the second floor of the new Post Office building in
October 1893, Here the library continued until the new building was com-
pleted in 1904,

Over at Hastings at a very early date, movements looking toward
establishment of a library were begun. The "Red Ribbon Club" in 1878 had a
Reading Room and in 1872 the Adams County Teachers Association was formed to
provide a circulating library for the teachers. This latter plan did not
succeed but in 1887 a permanent organization was made and a membership of one
dollar was charged. In 1903 the library was taken over by the city and that
same year the offer of $15,000 was received from Andrew Carnegie. The building
was opened in 1904.

In DeWitt in 1902 a reading room was established with the Congre-
gatiomiminister as leader. The new library board called Miss Edna Bullock of
the Commission to confer with them rejarding a building and in 1904 the
Carnegie building wag made ready.

The erection of the Carnegie Library building was the beginning

B
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of a real library career for Beatrice, Hastings, DeWitt and many more of the
new active Nebraska libraries.

In 1905 tHe new public library ih Grand Island was completed.
Since 1884L1hen the library wag otrganized, Mrs. 0. A. Abbott, the mother of
MisssEdith dbbott of—Westingtort, has been the president of the library board.

Not far away in K=arney, another building was opened the same
vear. Out in these cities of Grand 1sland ahd Kearney, where there has been
such a remarkable growth there is need for hore library accommodations.

AlLiow's Qednany wos Aledy tn V306,

In 1907 there were four new buildings r=ady to be opened to the
eager public in Havelock, Holdrege, Pawnee City and Tecumseh.

McCook was added to ths list in 1908, and Fairbury and Superior
in 1909. 1In the latter city in 1884 the Ladies Library Assoclation orzanized
a library with a dollar membership fee. In 1885 a lot was purchased and in
1887 the first bullding was erected. This was occupied until the new Carnegzie
library was ready.

One needs a map of Nebraska at hand to be able to locate the
towns. To trace the well known Platte River from the cast side of the state
where it joins the Missouri, back toward the west, following the broad valley,
locates a great many of the places. One should also follew the Loup and the
Republican and the Elkhorn. Nebragka is noted for its miles of river systems.
This explaing the routes that the enrly travelers must have followed as they
crossed the plaing and the founding of the several towns scattored along the

rivers.

In 1910 Sutton received a building. In 1911 Alma, Ashland, Eurora,

and Chadron, Neligh, Norfolk and Schuyler completed buildings

All credit zoss to the many clubg and literary socities which
mothered the struggling libraries. In Akhland the narrator told us that the
Woman's Club wag orguanized in 185 with a membership of twenty-two for the
purpose of establishing a public library. In 1908 the city council accepted
the library which had been organized by the club several years earlier. Then
in 1911 an Ashlond citizen donated a lot for the Carnegie building which had
been promiscd.

Six more buildings were opened in 1912..,Alliance, Geneva, North
Bend, North Platte, 0'Neill, Ponca, Far to the west and north lies Alliance,
a town which has had a wild history. The early days in Alliance were days of
adventure. Within the last few vears the city has grown up leaps and bounds.
In 1909 the library was organized by the Woman's Club and in 1912, a new
£10,000 building was occupied.

In Gz neva the county seat of Fillwore County, a nucleus of the
public library had Deen formed by a jzood doctor, Dr. H. L. Sinith, when he gave
hig library of two thousand volumes to the Masonic Lodge for the use of the
public. The library was housed in the Masonic Building. By 1906 the library
had¢ been turned over to the city and a librarian was appointed, Miss Nellie
Williams, now Secretary of the Nebraska Public Library Commission, was the
first librarian. In 1912 the Carnezie gift had been accepted and a new
building ercctad.




Endowments for libraries are scarce in Nebraska, but the Gencva
library hac a one thousand dollar endowment tlie interest of which is to be
used in buying books for boys. The gift was made by Mrs. P. B. Brayton, the
firgt preslident of the Geneva library board.

Gifts of money arc always acceptable to a library. It is a fact
that the great New York City Public Library which has a large private income
and receives a large appropriation from the city, for years sent out a printed
request for gifts of money. Gifte were received, too, and the money expended
in various ways but chiefly in decoration for branch libraries and for potted
plants; eté. 1f this is pormissible and acceptable in the largest of public
libraries it could be adopted by other libraries.

Norti Platte is one of the booming citieg located at the fork of
the Platte River where it commands & wonderful valley. Beyony North Platte
are the Rockies! 1t is the county scat of Lincoln County, a county larger
in area than Delaware. In March 1910 the Mayor of the city wrote to Mr. Car-
negic asking for a zift and in May he called together seven men interssted in
the proposition. When we learn that the building was erected in 1912 we know
that the plan must have been accepted. North Platte Public Library has felt
growing pains several times. Now the most desirable advance they can hope
for is that Lincoln County may have a county service sooil.

Each year along here, records additional buildinzs. In each town
where a Carnegie buillding was erected it can be looked upon with pride. So
little thought had been put into any buildinz program for the most of the towns
that the new library building was ofttimes the most commanding building in the
community.

\t Gibbon in 1¢02 a little fund was set aside for a future public
Livbrary. The Voman's Study League added to the amount and in 1910 the library
was organizad. Ve wish rizht here to mention the assistance and advice Wiss
Charlotte Templeton, then of the Nebraska Public Library Commission, was often
callea upon to contribute. So out in Gibbon they appsaled to Miss Templeton
and through her they learned of the Carnegle library plan. In 1913 the buildinf
was opened--another one of the stata's township libraries.

Madison is a library town! The pressent library had its beginning
in 1907. Various w:iys and means vere employed to support the inctitution.
Throuzh the Library Commission, traveling librariss were received. A library
association of two hundrod members, was orzanized at one dollar per member.
At the Ccunty Fair a literary hog wais donated and guesses on his weight were
sold, and at another Fair a calf wss sold to the hizhest bidder. These ways
and others furnished income for the strugzling library, and in 1910 the city
adopted it. Madison his a right to feel proud of the building erected in
1912 and of the record the library has ever since maintained.

Another northeastern town of which the state is proud is Wayne.
Azain a group of women had made a library possible for a whole community.
The club was organized for "Mutual sympathy and counszl, cooparation and
broacer culture." In 1910 the council voted the maximum levy for the support
of the library. The Federated Clubs presented the city with fifteen thousand
volumes, a very nice gift for the new library. In 1913 the library was moved
from the Court House, to the new Carnegie buildingz. Wayne is another city
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which is handicapped in its best service for lack of room.

In 1914 Burwell, Fairfield, Fullertorn, Seward, and Chelton re—
ceived libraries. The story of ecach would no doubt tell of the number of
loyal women and men who assisted in making the library possible.

“ ! : " Ny k3
It is rather a co-incident to note. that Crete and Columbus which
claim 1878 for ths organization should receive Carnegie buildings in 1915.

Colunbus is a near United States Capital' Because of its central
location in the country it was strongly urced by a few (and by one George
Grancis Train, in particular) alongz in 1864 as the capital of the United Stateg

Franklin and Stanton were also 1915 libraries. In Franklin
the local W.C.T.U. was instrumentsl in starting the library and in 1914 the
Principal of the Academy gave his assistance to securc a Carnezie building.
This was accomplished the next ycar. 1In 1922 when the Academy was closed their
choice library was given to the public library. Franklin serves a very wide
territory.

"One good turn deserves another.”" One town after another was
moved to ask the Carnegie Corporation for a library. For a number of years an
average of five hundred applications from the United States and Canada alone,
aud nearly as many more from other Ifnglish speaking nations, were received by
the Corporation.

In 1916 ten more were added to the Nebraska group. They were
Bloomfiela, 3rckon Bow, Claoy Center, Colleze View, Gothenburz, Hartington,
Harvard, Plainview,Plattsmouth, Tekamah, and University Place.

In Clay Center there was a gymnasium constructed in connection
with the library. This made it doubly important as a civic center.

Plattsmouth, it will be recalled, was cne of the very early
orzanizations (1895).

The stories regarding the beginning of each library are very simila
In a town history names of individual citizeus responsibla for the public
library, and all other civic improvements, should be listed but it is im-
possible and impracticable to name many in a paper of this typaz.

Trying years wer: approachingz. Libraries in construction and con-
tracted for, warce completed. The buildings at Arcadia, Blair, Loup City, .

Sidney, Spencer and Stromgburg were finighed in 1917.

How often the librariss were in the beginning subgcription 1lib-
raries. Blair, the county seat of Washington County, was such. Blair is the
only institution of any size in the county and would make an excellent center
for a County Library.

Ravenna's library was fimighed in 1018. There had been guch an
inceease in the cost of labor and in building material since contractswerc
let, that the cost of the bullding exceeded the Carnegie Corporation gift. It

was necessary for the city to furnish £4,500 more to complete the plan.
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In 1919 we add Clarks, David City, Lexington and Wymora. Wymore
is one of the old towns down in southeastern part of the state. Many of the
early sa2ttlers located in that section. As early as 1897 a small library
had been established. The interest and ambition to have a public library
never died out and their dream was roalized in 1019,

here are two more to rccord. Two cities out "where the west
begins." Scottsbluff's building was completed in 1921 and Cozad's in 1922.
The arrangements had been completed before the War but it was not wise to
continue building programs sgo the libraries were delayed.

Scottsbluft is one of thoss cities out in the suzar beet region,
that has sprung up over night. ihy, in 1900 Scottsbluff was scarcely notice-
able and in 1920 it is a full grown city. The appropriation in 1918 was
©12,500 and by 1921 when the building could be undertalien the assessed valua—
tion of property had so increased as to permit the Corporation to grant them
15,000, Scottsbluff needs more room —- for Scottsbluff is still zrowinaz.

then Kr. Carnegie turned over the work of his many funds to the
Carnugie Corporaticn, his benefacticis lost a pergonal element. 1t was only
natural that the Corporation should start an investigation of the libraries.
It was discovored that some of the contracts had not becn kept and that financig/
digaster hzd occurred. Bubt for the most part that failure to keep the con-
tract was net a failure on thz part of the library, for the library did not
euter inte thz agreecmeut. The municipality agreed to support the library.
Nevartholzss, the Corporaticn, becauss of several reascens, announced in 1917
that it would give no aore money for library builain:

o
=) 35

The Corperation has given largely since that datz, to librar
5 (=) 5ty b4
educatisn, but hag ziven through the wedium of the American Library Association

Ve learned recently of a Carnegie Livrary in Nebraska which is
nzarly bankrupt. This is 2 sorious situaticn which does not sound well.
Pernaps 3 should not puass judgment but according to information gleaned in
Mr. Learned's "The Awerican Library and tie Difusion of Knowledze'", we learn
“thwat "However éisagreeanble the conclusion may be, libraries that lack support
nay ag well confront the fact that they are not furnishing the kind of service
raquired by the individuals whom they ouzht to reach." Something is wrong.

It may be a combination of wronzs —- both from a lack of sufficient support
and the wrong nethod of attock —- but whatever the cause, the community is
suffering and will fall far short of a well rounded town if the library ie
allowed to fall. No more should the library be deprived of its rightful
share of thie income from the annual tax than should the public schools be cut
shert. The children would be hut cut out of their rightful heritage if either
of the institutions should fail, and the university of the people would be
destroyed if the library wore cloged. Hr. Carnegic had great faith in the
public libraries. He at one time sald, "M; roasons for sclecting public
librarizs being my velief, as Carlyle has recorded, that the true university
of thesc days is a collection of books, and that thus such libraries are on-
titled to a first place as insgtrumsnts for the elevation of the masses of the
paopla,?

Psycho-analysis miht be introduced as a library subject, -- for
creative reading.

There - is an indirect benefit derived from the many Carnegic zifts.
Mr. Carncyie himsclf said that he did nct wish to be known for what he had




given but for wvhat haz had induced others to give.

Always the greatzet velue of auy gift of similar nature is not
from the money value it may have, but in the civic interest and pride it
arouses. So in many of the communities where a Carnegie library haz been
given, local interest has been craated sufficient to add other whorth while
gifits.

5]

Ana further,neighboring towns not so fortunate as to have a
Carnegzie library buildinz, have been moved to secure one for themselves by
other means. O0ften a local citizen has been ingpired to do something for his
ovn home town. Rivalry does wonders toward creatine civic pride and if rightly
directed can place a town on the highest of planes. No community should be
without a library so if the desire to have a library building is flamed be-
cause a rival town ie the proud possessor of ona, it is a flame that cen well
be fanned.

The wnparalleled gifts of Mr. Carneyie for library buildings, did
far more to craozte an intercst in the library movement than any other one
thing. This action of one man has givan courage and hope to librery cnthusias

So in our own state of Nebraska there arc those towns, sixty-eizht
of them, which are most fortunate in having been recipisnts of the great beno-
factor, Andrew Carnezie. Reciplonts of a "ercative benevolence" as Mr. Stuart
Sherman choss to name it.

Thare are those towns, twenty-one in all, which have been blessed
with a library buildinz, the zift of a local philanthropist, or a zroup of
public-spiritsd citizens. There is nothing more aeserving of commeondation.
It will be recalled that Mr. Carnegie's first zift was a public library to
his owvn town of Iunfermline, in Scotland.

There are 2till other communitics withoutl library buildings and so
neczdful for adsquate facilities. This last group is composed of towns having
a library organization and a municipal levy but no library home. There are
fifty-four of this class. <Zome of the towns are still rezretting that the
Carnegie fund is no more available for building purposes and still hoping
that some entarprising citizen will be moved to contribute toward such a worthy
cause. John Brizhit has a word just along this thousht, "1t is impossible for
any man to bastow a greater benefit upon a young man than to give him access
to books and a free library."

And there is that other large group where there are no librariszs.
There are no towns of over wo thousgand population where no library now exists
but it ig a long, long trail to that time when as in Massachusetts, cvery
town (but one) will have a library. 1n fact that time will never be —- it
would not be advisable. Thore ars in Nobraska ninety-three countiss and in
twenty-one of these there are today no librariss. Thz size of some of these
counties is gr.ater in square miles than the arzas of scveral ecastern states.
Why, Cherry County with 5,979 square miles is considerably larger than
Connzcticut with 4,965 square miles, or Dolaware with 2,370 square miles or
hode Island with 1,248 square miles. While a zroup of six countics would
practically cover Neow Bngland, and Rhode lsland and Delaware might play hide
and seek in ths spacas!
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< County (Nebr.) Arep Population (1920)
Cherry 5979 sq. miles 11,753
Custer 2588 26,407
Holt 353 17,151
lincoln 25386 23,420
Sioux 2055 4,528
Sheridan 2469 9,625
Rhode Island 1248 604,397
Delaware 2370 225,003
Connecticut 4965 1,%80,631
Pennsylvania 45,126 8,720,017
Masgachusotts 8R66 5,862,556
Nebraska 775820 1,296,372

The population, it is true, is not dense but people as red-blooded as the
people in Massachusetts or Rhode lgland live there, and they call for
gsarvice. What a field for county-extension along with several of the other
counties where but one or two organized libraries now function. Why not?
This is the next step to take -- we have the need and we have the law and we
have no county libraries.

Nebraska was seventy-five yzars old in 1929. It is said that the
first seventy-five years are the hardest. Therefore, we will push out to
greater years and they will be bigzer and better than ever.




CARNEGLD LIBrARIGS 1IN NIEBRASKA.

T S ETE T TE R Y o W0 4 S e N &% 8 = o Orzan-

BEEEHEHREERR  HREEREEEERS
Albion X i ! 1900
Alliance X ? | 1909
Alug X . : i 1910
hrcadie Xl ‘ 1917
Aczhland X . 1902
Baatrice X . 1893
Blair X 1917
Bloomfield X 1908
Broken Bow X 1910
Burwell _ X , 1912
Chadren b U . i 1908
Clorks i X 1919
Clay Center L I . 1910
Collese View X 1905
Golumbus ) ) 1878
Cozad oo X | 1917
Crate ) aw LT X 1878
David City | A 1891
Dabiitt X 1902
Fairbury X 1900
Fairficld . A 1906
Franklin b 1915
Frament X 1201
Fullerton A : 1911
Geneva L 1506
Gibbon A 1810
Gothenbury b 1915
Grand leland * 1884
Hartington ¥ 1214
Harvard L 1916
Hastinzs X 1903
Havaleck A 1907
Heoldrcze o i 1896
Kearnoy ~ 1% 1890
Lazinzton % 1919
Linceln X 1875
Loup City b 1917
MeCuok A py 1902
Madison X 1907
Neli.sh X 1904
Norfulk 0 1908
Nerth Bend X 1908
North Platlte Y 1911
O'Neill X 1912
Pawnce City A . 1904
Pisrce X 1908
Aupora X 1908
Plainview X 1908
Plattsmouth Y 1886
Ponca A O TR PV P PO DL VI L [ L ] 1910




CARNEGIE LIBRARIES IN NEBRASKA (Cont.)

~ ) | Hv o Bel N Q) o TN -~ wan—
R REENRRRN S NNEEELEEREE S
Randolph X . 11918
Ravenna X . |1918
Schuyler [ ; X - 11909
Scottsbluff x| T9LY
Seward (1690
Shelton ! ‘g = —TEH0T
Sidney ! x| 1917
South Omaha ] 1004
Spencer X 1916
Stanton i X 19156
Stromgburg X 1918
Superior ) 1884
Sulton X d 1908
zcumgch X ; 1837
Tokamah X 1916
Univorsity
Place X 19186
Wayne . __ . X ! 1903
Wrmore ! X 1917
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